

## City of Rochester, New Hampshire

CITY COUNCIL
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE
31 Wakefield Street □ Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 332-1167

www.RochesterNH.gov

June 14, 2023

**TO:** Public Safety Committee

**REGARDING:** Public Safety Committee Meeting

There will be a Public Safety Committee meeting **June 21, 2023** at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers.

#### **AGENDA**

- 1. Approve Minutes from May 18, 2023 Public Safety Meeting-pages 1-3
- 2. Public Input
- 3. Salmon Falls Road Speed Limit Issue and Electronic Sign Placement (kept in committee)- page 4
- 4. Flashing Lights and Raised Table Policy Discussion
- 5. 261 Eastern Avenue-Street Light Request- page 5
- 6. Chestnut Street -Speed Control-page 6
- 7. Salmon Falls Road-Road Curve Sign near # 229-page 7
- 8. Tibbetts Road near 187 Old Dover Road-Paint "STOP" in Thick white paint
- 9. Other

cc.

Mayor and City Council Chief Gary Boudreau Deputy Chief Jason Thomas Fire Chief Dennis Dube Mr. Jarrod Norris Mr. Timothy Goldthwaite Ms. Lisa Clark

# Public Safety Committee Draft Meeting Minutes May 17, 2023 6:00 PM Council Chambers

#### **Members Present**

Councilor Peter Lachapelle, Chair Councilor Alexander de Geofroy Councilor Skip Gilman

#### **Members Absent**

Councilor Dana Berlin (excused)
Councilor Amy Malone

#### **Others Present**

Michael Bezanson, PE, City Engineer Jarrod Norris, P.E. Assistant City Engineer Gina Golden-Silvestro, GIS/AM Technician Deputy Chief Jason Thomas, PD

Councilor Lachapelle brought the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.

1. Approve Minutes from Public Safety Meeting

Councilor Gilman MOVED to approve the minutes from April 19, 2023 Councilor

de Geofroy seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED by unanimous voice vote.

#### 2. Public Input

There was no members of the public present for public input.

### 3. Salmon Falls Road Speed Limit Issue and Electronic Sign Placement (kept in committee)

Councilor Lachapelle summarized the issue. At last month's Public Safety Committee Meeting the Police Department submitted a list of streets that may warrant the electronic sign that is currently placed on Salmon Falls Road. One of the areas is on North Main Street by Poulin's heading into town. Councilor Lachapelle asked Deputy Chief Thomas if the sign might benefit being placed closer to town by the circle. Deputy Chief Thomas stated that the speed trailer was placed downtown from April 1st through May 16th 2023 on the square there was 112,345 vehicles with the average speed being 18.53 mph and the average speed 24.51. He said there doesn't seem to be a speeding issue there is always the perception that they maybe going faster. Mr. Bezanson said they are constructing the Strafford Square not sure how that will calm traffic getting around the the circle and that the 25 mph speed limit signs will be posted soon, not sure how they will help. Councilor de Geofroy stated if the data is not supporting speeding it could be distracting drivers and not paying attention to pedestrians trying to cross the road. Councilor Lachapelle asked Deputy Chief Thomas if the list was in order of importance, Deputy Chief Thomas said it was not. Councilor Lachapelle read the list of 8 streets aloud to the committee.

- 1. Whitehall Road before the Hospital
- 2. Portland Street area of Flower Street heading in to town
- 3. Washington Street coming into town before Lowes

Page 1 of 3 Public Safety Committee Meeting May 17, 2023

- Portland Street in East Rochester at the bottom of the hill by the East Rochester School
- 5. Ten Rod Road coming into town by Industrial Way
- 6. Eastern Avenue coming into town
- 7. Walnut Street by Twombly coming into town
- 8. North Main Street by Poulin's heading into town

Councilor Lachapelle said that the raise tables are still at the Public Works Committee, so he doesn't think they should make a decision tonight. Councilor de Geofroy asked if the police department had any accident data for these specific areas to see if the speed is contributing to accidents. **(kept in committee)** 

#### 4. Flashing Lights and Raised Table Policy Discussion

Councilor Lachapelle summarized the issue. Councilor Berlin was not in attendance and this is still in the Public Works Committee, Director of City Services Peter Nourse is looking into this. **(kept in committee)** 

#### 5. Quarry Drive Requesting Additional Speed Limit Sign

Councilor Lachapelle summarized the issue. Deputy Chief Thomas said that the speed trailer was placed on Lowell Street in the area where the speed limit sign was requested. March 29, through April 27, 2023 there was a total of 8,805 vehicles the average speed was 32.5 mph and the speed limit is 30 mph. Chief Thomas recalls the concern was vehicles travelling from Harding Street to Lowell Street. Mr. Bezanson could recommend an additional speed limit sign as it is a long stretch. Councilor Gilman suggested moving the sign down the street a little.

Councilor de Geofroy MOVED to recommend to full Council to install "30 mph" in the area Hillside Drive at the discretion of DPW Councilor Gilman seconded seconded the motion. Mr. Bezanson said the cut through traffic from Harding may go into this neighborhood. Councilor de Geofroy amended his motion to install 30 mph speed limit sign between the 2 Churches on Lowell Street at the discretion of DPW. Councilor Gilman seconded the motion. The MOTIONED CARRIED by unanimous voice vote.

#### 6. Street Light Request-53 Gear Road (kept in committee)

Councilor Lachapelle summarized the issue. He said that coming from 125 to Gear Road there is a series of lights then there is a gap by 53 Gear Road. Councilor Lachapelle stated it does meet the street light policy. Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to recommend to full Council to install street-light on pole near 53 Gear Road at the discretion of DPW. Councilor de Geofroy seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED the motion.

7. Crowhill Road-Requesting "Dead End" or "No Outlet" Sign (kept in committee)
Councilor Lachapelle summarized the issue. Mr. Bezanson checked to see what kind
of sign would be appropriate because this is a class 6 road that the city maintains
until the driveway. Councilor Gilman MOVED to recommend to full council to
install a "no thru street" sign on Crowhill by Copper Lane. Councilor de

Page 2 of 3
Public Safety Committee Meeting
May 17, 2023

#### Geofroy seconded the motion. THE MOTION CARRIED by unanimous voice vote.

#### 8. Meadow Lane-Requesting Warning Signs

Councilor Lachapelle summarized the issue. The request came in from the mayor for some sort of warning sign. Councilor Lachapelle said there was already a warning sign there. Mr. Bezanson did say there was a warning sign there, he stated he drove the area to see how bad the curve was and said you have to drive slow to maneuver the it. He also stated you can add an advisory speed sign there, he said it is not enforceable but it will warn people of the 90 degree curve and to slow down. Mr. Bezanson also said he spoke with an abutter near Meadow Lane and he said it is a problematic area if you do not know the area. The abutter also said he was ok with whatever sign the committee wanted to put up to help the area. The phase three construction is almost complete Mr. Bezanson was not sure if they would utilize this area for a detour for that or not. Mr. Bezanson recommends changing the existing signs to 90 degree angled curve signs and adding a lower advisory speed sign. Councilor de Geofroy MOVE to recommend to full Council to install a "90 degree turn" sign with a 10 mph advisory" speed sign in both directions near curve on Meadow Lane. Councilor Gilman seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED 3 to 1 with Councilor Gilman opposed to the "advisory speed sign".

#### 9. Other

Mr. Bezanson said that this would be his last meeting and it was a pleasure to serve the Public Safety Committee and the City for 9 ½ years and he appreciated the opportunity. Councilor Lachapelle to Mr. Bezanson it was a pleasure working with you and hates to see him go but was happy for him. Mr. Bezanson introduced Jarrod Norris to the committee who will be taking over Mr. Bezanson duties on the committee. Councilor Lachapelle ask Mr. Bezanson if he would pass on the items that have been in committee to Mr. Norris.

Councilor Lachapelle said the next Public Safety Committee Meeting will be held on June 21, 2023.

Councilor Lachapelle asked Deputy Chief Thomas if a meeting could be set up with him, the Police Department and the gentleman with the issue with the Oak Street target shooting.

#### Councilor Lachapelle ADJOURNED the meeting at 6:28 PM.

The minutes were respectfully submitted by Laura J. McDormand, Admin and Utility Billing Supervisor

Street	Sum of # of Incidents
North Main St	1704
Portland St	554
Whitehall Rd	398
Ten Rod Rd	243
Eastern Ave	203
Portland St (ER)	199
Washington St	144
Walnut St	101
Grand Total	3546

#### Eastern Avenue

#### **Laura McDormand**

From:

Blaine Cox

Sent:

Thursday, May 18, 2023 1:44 PM

To:

Peter Lachapelle; Laura McDormand

Cc:

Katie Ambrose

**Subject:** 

Public Safety Committee Agenda Item - Street Light Request

Chairman Lachapelle – The resident at 261 Eastern Avenue, Jason O'Brien, requests to be placed on the agenda of the next Public Safety Committee meeting so that he can appear before the committee and request a streetlight be installed near his residence. He indicated that it is a safety issue.

Laura – If Chairman Lachapelle places this on an agenda, please call Mr. Obrien confirming the date & time. His number

Blaine M. Cox City Manager City of Rochester

Email sent to and from this City of Rochester email address is subject to NH RSA 91-A (the NH Public Records Law) and may, subject to certain exemptions, be subject to disclosure to third parties. This email message and any attachments may contain information that is confidential and/or legally privileged in accordance with applicable laws or regulations. It is intended only for the use of the person and/or entity identified as recipient(s) in the message. If you are not an intended recipient of this message, please notify the sender immediately and delete the material. Do not print, deliver, distribute or copy this message, and do not disclose its contents or take any action in reliance on the information it contains unless authorized to do so. Thank you.

#### Chestnut Hill Road

Scott Beebe (<u>Beebe.scott06@gmail.com</u>) has sent you a message via your contact form (https://www.rochesternh.gov/user/6051/contact) at rochesternh.

If you don't want to receive such e-mails, you can change your settings at https://www.rochesternh.gov/user/6051/edit.

Message:

Dear Mayor Callaghan,

Good morning Sir and happy Thursday to you. This message has been created for the concern towards speed control for the neighborhood my family and I reside. We are at 52 Chestnut Street, Rochester, and my wife and I concerned about the excessive speeding that occurs on our street. We have contacted the authorities on numerous occasions because of speeding motorcycles that dangerously drive by consistently. Motor vehicles have not been as bad, but we are concerned for our daughter with Down syndrome, and our pets. Would you possibly consider the construction of speed bumps placed on Chestnut Street, etc.? I greatly appreciate your time Mayor and have a blessed day.

R/S

Scott Beebe

This email has been scanned for spam and viruses by Proofpoint Essentials. Click <u>here</u> to report this email as spam.

Email sent to and from this City of Rochester email address is subject to NH RSA 91-A (the NH Public Records Law) and may, subject to certain exemptions, be subject to disclosure to third parties. This email message and any attachments may contain information that is confidential and/or legally privileged in accordance with applicable laws or regulations. It is intended only for the use of the person and/or entity identified as recipient(s) in the message. If you are not an intended recipient of this message, please notify the sender immediately and delete the material. Do not print, deliver, distribute or copy this message, and do not disclose its contents or take any action in reliance on the information it contains unless authorized to do so. Thank you.

Email sent to and from this City of Rochester email address is subject to NH RSA 91-Å (the NH Public Records Law) and may, subject to certain exemptions, be subject to disclosure to third parties. This email message and any attachments may contain information that is confidential and/or legally privileged in accordance with applicable laws or regulations. It is intended only for the use of the person and/or entity identified as recipient(s) in the message. If you are not an intended recipient of this message, please notify the sender immediately and delete the material. Do not print, deliver, distribute or copy this message, and do not disclose its contents or take any action in reliance on the information it contains unless authorized to do so. Thank you.

#### Salmon Falls Road

#### Laura McDormand

From: Ronda Boisvert

**Sent:** Monday, June 12, 2023 1:55 PM

To:Laura McDormandSubject:Salmon Falls Road

Hi Laura,

Cynthia Hodge came in today from 229 Salmon Falls Road with concerns with people speeding by the home and going off the pavement because they are going so fast. She was asking if a sign could be placed showing that the road curves there. She stated that they have been working our front of their home and almost have gotten hit. They also said that there have been employees at the pump station that have almost been hit as well. Please include these safety concerns to the Public Safety Committee.

Thank you, Ronda Boisvert Administrative Assistant II City of Rochester DPW 603-335-7563 ronda.boisvert@rochesternh.gov

Email sent to and from this City of Rochester email address is subject to NH RSA 91-A (the NH Public Records Law) and may, subject to certain exemptions, be subject to disclosure to third parties. This email message and any attachments may contain information that is confidential and/or legally privileged in accordance with applicable laws or regulations. It is intended only for the use of the person and/or entity identified as recipient(s) in the message. If you are not an intended recipient of this message, please notify the sender immediately and delete the material. Do not print, deliver, distribute or copy this message, and do not disclose its contents or take any action in reliance on the information it contains unless authorized to do so. Thank you.